PERRY O'SBORNE

APPELLANT

APPELLEES

VS.

CAUSE NO. 2009-CP-01312

G. RIVES NEBLETT REAL ESTATE INVESTOR/ DEVELOPER

GLENN H.WILLIAMS-ATTORNEY AND TRUSTEE FOR G. RIVES NEBLETT

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned, Pro Se', of record, certifies that the following listed persons have an interest

in the outcome of this case. These representations are made, in order that the Justices of the

Supreme Court and/or the Judges of the Court of Appeals may evaluate possible disqualification

or recusal.

- 1. Perry Osborne, Pro Se', Appellant; P O Box 211 Merigold MS 38759-0211
- 2. G. Rives Neblett, Appellee; 401 N. Second Street Shelby MS 38774

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

By this, Statement of the Issues, Perry Osborne Appellant Pro Se', will respectfully present these issues to this distinguished, Honorable Court, as follows:

- Having not received the requested Continuance due to medical reasons, significantly interfered with and impaired Pro Se', Plaintiff's ability to reasonably present his case in the initial hearing.
- The foreclosure process which was patently invalid, procedurally deficient and not legitimate with requirements, with regards to Mississippi Code Annotated 89-1-55 and 1-3-69 (1972).
- 3. Misleading and incorrect information stated in the Orders, and the filing of the Orders.
- A lapse in time, (Statue of Limitations) in regards to Defendants rights, under the Promissory note and Deed of Trust, to act and/or foreclose.
- 5. The Defendant's inaction also gives rise to a defense under the equitable doctrine of Laches. Between, August 2003 and August 2008, Plaintiff made repeated requests for information from Defendant in regards to the debt and what was owed, the Defendants failed and refused to respond, in a prompt and timely manner.

- 6. Disclosure of Information for Any Possible Basis for Judicial Recusal. A motion to disclose for Any Possible Basis for Judicial Recusal was filed and a Notice of Hearing. The Chancery Judge's action raises concern of improprieties and partiality with Defendant and his Attorney and Trustee Williams.
- 7. Plaintiff Perry Osborne, respectfully reserves the right to supplement and/or amend this Statement of the Issues, to convey a fair and accurate account of the issues in this case.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED THIS THE 19TH DAY OF MAY 2010.

PERRY OSBORNE PRO SE LANT, P O BOX 211 MERIGOLD MS 38759-0211 PHONE (662) 398-7371 Email:ozzieauto@BellSouth.net

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I Perry Osborne Pro Se, Appellant, do hereby certify that I have on this day mailed by first class

U.S. mail, postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing STATEMENT

OF THE ISSUES, to the following addresses:

Ms. Kathy Gillis Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk P O Box 249 Jackson MS 39205-0249 Attorney Glenn H, Williams Attorney and Trustee for G. Rives Neblett 201 North Pearman Avenue Cleveland MS 38732

CERTIFIED THIS THE 19TH DAY OF MAY 201 RY OSBORNE PRO SE' APPELLANT O BOX MERIGØLD MS 38759-0211 PHONÉ (662) 398-7371 Email:ozzieauto@BellSouth.net

Page 5 of 37

PERRY OSBORNE

APPELLANT

VS.

CAUSE NO. 2009-CP 01312

G. RIVES NEBLETT REAL ESTATE INVESTOR/DEVELOPER

APPELLEES

GLENN H. WILLIAMS-ATTORNEY AND TRUSTEE FOR G. RIVES NEBLETT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

THIS MATTER came on before the court on **February 05, 2009**, in the 7th Chancery Court District in the Second Judicial District of Bolivar County. On **December 04, 2008** the Plaintiff herein, filed a **Complaint For Injunctive Relief** with regards to a foreclosure, of a Deed Of Trust, executed by the Plaintiff in favor of the Defendants. This Deed of Trust and the Promissory Note was prepared and filed by Attorney Glenn H. Williams, Trustee and Attorney for G. Rives Neblett, on August 22, 2000, in Book N-24, Page 291 in the records of the Deed of Trust in the office of the Chancery Clerk of Bolivar County, in Cleveland Mississippi.

1. Prior to this, legal proceedings, the Plaintiff, Perry Osborne, back in September 2003, went to the Defendant's office, G. Rives Neblett, which is located in Shelby, Mississippi of Bolivar County, to obtain a pay-off balance in regards to the balloon payment, which was the final payment of the Promissory Note. This information was vital in order for the Plaintiff to satisfy his obligations in regards to the Promissory Note. Upon discussing this, with the Defendant, G. Rives Neblett he requested, more time, to prepare the pay-off statement. 2. After several, phone calls and visits to the Defendant's office, G. Rives Neblett, it started to become clear, and eventually admitted by his office secretary, that their payment schedule and receipts were either misplaced or lost," as so it seemed". I, Plaintiff suggested, and it was concurred by his office, to supply whatever records Plaintiff has, which would assist the Defendant's office in preparing a pay-off statement.

3. After Plaintiff, eventually received, what appeared to have been a pay-off statement, it became evident, after a short observation of the document, of its inaccurate information, being that several payments were missing. The Plaintiff wrote letters, which are included as exhibits in the Record, and made numerous phone calls and visits to Defendant's office, G. Rives Neblett, to inform him of its inaccuracy.

4. Also included, in the transfer of information, it was outlined to Mr. Neblett that funds had been deposited in an account, to satisfy the note, with a bank that he has a favorable relationship with. Mind you, this bank is directly across the street, from his office. During this time, the Plaintiff made payments after September 2003, to indicate his good intent, to satisfy the Promissory Note.

5. This issue, in reference to, the accuracy of the pay-off statement, went on for some time. It also, became an issue of not, being able to reach the Defendant, G. Rives Neblett, due to his lacking of presence in the state, as the Plaintiff was told by his office. As years past, Plaintiff had not received any information from the Defendant, Mr. Neblett or his Trustee, Attorney Glenn H. Williams.

6. Then, somewhere around July 2008, the Defendant's Attorney Glenn II. Williams, without no prior notice or warning, called and informed the Plaintiff of a foreclosure in

progress. The Plaintiff, Perry Osborne, obviously surprised and stunned, offered Attorney Williams the same information that he had offered the Defendant Mr. Neblett. At this point, the Defendant's trustee had suggested that Defendant and the Plaintiff try to come to an agreement, on the terms of the pay-off. Because of the inaccuracy and the confusion of the Amortization statement, the Plaintiff and the Defendant, could not come to a conclusion.

7. At that point, a foreclosure was re-established. It was then, that it was brought to my attention, by previous counsel there was an issue in regards to the forfeiture of a contract, due to a lapse of time, by the Defendant. The Plaintiff in return, to gain a clear understanding of these, new issues, and to halt all process of the foreclosure, a

Complaint For Injunctive Relief was filed in Chancery Court on December 04, 2008.

8. Subsequently, to obtain a more detailed understanding, from the Defendants, a request for answers, Interrogatories and the Request for Production of Documents were filed February 03, 2009, in the Record, of the Bolivar County Chancery Court.

9.On **February 05, 2009**, a hearing was held, upon entering, the hearing the Plaintiff presented a dental appointment card to the Chancery Judge, due to Plaintiff's medical condition, (two broken teeth), a **Continuance** was requested and accepted by the Chancery Judge. The Defendant's Attorney Williams, vigorously objected, and shockingly, the Chancery Judge reversed his decision.

10.In an unusual, twist of maneuvers, in contrary to *M.R.C.P. Rule 13*, by the Defendant's Trustee, that was allowed by the Chancery Judge and a total disregard of my rights of due process; the Defendants were allowed to become Counter-Plaintiffs and

all information submitted, in the **Plaintiff's** case was either **rejected or cancelled**, during this hearing on **February 05, 2009**. The Judge ruled in favor of the Defendant, and the Judge appointed the Defendant's Attorney to draw up the **Order** which was signed and dated, **February 12, 2009 without first affording** the Plaintiff the opportunity to review and criticize the same.

11. This was mainly due, to my **inability to represent myself**, due to my two (2) broken teeth. And now it has become clear, as to why it took so long for the Defendants to respond to the Plaintiff's requests, for an accurate, pay-off statement. The balance owed on the Amortization/ pay-off statement submitted by the Defendant's Attorney, had brought, with interest, the balance back to the original Promissory Note.

12. The Plaintiff was finally; able to obtain a lawyer, which the Attorney entered a Notice of Appearance on March 16, 2009. The Plaintiff's lawyer filed a Motion For Reconsideration, For Stay Of Order And For Other Relief on March 16, 2009. With proper notice for hearing issued to the Defendants in this case, this Motion came on for hearing on May 29, 2009.

13. The Plaintiff attended the hearing, the day started with a very unusual turn of events, upon entering the Court house with my lawyer, we proceeded to the courtroom, where he (Plaintiff's Attorney) and Plaintiff engaged ourselves with issues in regards to the case, shortly after, we entered the Courtroom someone entered from the back of the court room and beckoned for, my (Plaintiff's) Lawyer attention.

14. After returning, from speaking to this individual, he (Plaintiff's Lawyer) returned to tell the Plaintiff, that the Chancery Judge wanted to speak with him in the Judge's

Chambers, Plaintiff's Lawyer gestured to me (Plaintiff) to remain seated, in the Court room, until he returns. With witness, beside me, that is, what I (Plaintiff) did. **15**. Shortly after, Plaintiff's Lawyer, exited, Plaintiff heard loud voices coming from the rear of the courtroom. Plaintiff suspects the voices are coming from the "Judge's Chamber", Plaintiff remain seated, for a least another twenty (25) or thirty (30) minutes. The Plaintiff's Lawyer returned and beckoned the Plaintiff to follow him to the Judge's Chambers.

16. When the Plaintiff entered the Chambers, the Chancery Court Judge was seated at the head (end) of a long conference table, with both Attorneys seated opposite of each other. When I took a seat at the table, with my witness, Plaintiff was preparing to engage in the process of the hearing. Plaintiff was confronted by the Chancery Judge interrogating me (Plaintiff) about, why I had not paid Rives (Defendant) his monies.

17. I (Plaintiff) obviously attempted to gather my composure in an attempt to answer the Judge's question, and try and understand what was going on, after a few back and forward gestures, in this matter; it was demanded of me (Plaintiff) to go back into negotiations to pay Rives (Defendant) his monies.

18. I (Plaintiff) respectfully suggested to the Court, at that moment, that there were other issues at hand that needed to be addressed, the Chancery Judge, told me, to concur with my lawyer. Then, they (Chancery Judge, Defendant's Attorney and Plaintiff's Attorney) all shook hands as if, they had made a valiant accomplishment, at that point, the hearing was adjourned.

19. After leaving the Judge's Chamber, I (Plaintiff) asked my Attorney, what happened to the hearing, for the Motion For Reconsideration, For Stay Of Order And Other Relief?

His (Plaintiff's Attorney) response to me was, "Did you hear us arguing and fussing in the back room, that was the hearing". I (Plaintiff) was speechless. This charade ended with no agreement reached at the hearing. In conjunction, with the Chancery Judge's **verbal Order**, these "re-negotiations" went on for several weeks. It ended, with no agreements.

20. A few weeks, after the hearing, the Motion to Reconsider..., the Chancery Judge summoned both, Attorneys to prepare a proposed Order. My (Plaintiff's) Attorney had prepared two (2) proposals. The first proposal, I (plaintiff) was in favor of, the second one, I was not. My, (Plaintiff) Lawyer chose the second one. The second proposed Order was submitted to the Chancery Judge. During the Motion to Expand the Record, it was included the Record. The Chancery Judge eventually entered a ruling, and chose, the Defendant's proposed Order. The Order was signed and entered on July 09, 2009.
21. The Order, for the Motion For Reconsideration, For Stay Of Order And Other Relief, was appealed to the Mississippi Supreme Court on August 10, 2009.

22. Upon reviewing, the **Record** to prepare for the Appeal process, the Appellant discovers the **lack of** information, exhibits, etc... which was originally furnished to the Attorney who prepared the Motion for Reconsideration, For Stay Of Order And Other Relief. The **inclusion** of pertinent information, exhibits, etc... **was vitally** important to support, the Plaintiff's case.

23. A motion was filed on August 28, 2009, to Request Expansion And Correction To The Records, pursuant to *M.R.A.P. Rule (10)(e)*. Upon proper notification, of the Notice of Hearing, to Defendant's Attorney, a hearing was held on September10, 2009. 24. On September 10, 2009, a hearing for the Motion to Expand the Record, pursuant to *M.R.A.P. Rule (10) (e)*, came on for hearing, being in the position, once again as Pro Se', and trying to rectify the issues, to the Chancery Judge had become a struggle, for this information to be included in the Record, along with trying to deal with the objections from Glenn H. Williams, Attorney of the Defendant, was difficult, to say the least.
25. Eventually, the Judge gave his decision, to grant Plaintiff's expansion of the Record, but only to a limited amount. This was confusing, how does the Judge and the Defendant's Attorney, control what pertinent information, be submitted in the Record on Plaintiff's behalf? The Judge appointed, the Defendant's Attorney Williams to prepare the Order.

26. After several days, around September 16, 2009, of not hearing from, the Defendant's Attorney, Plaintiff went to the office of Attorney Glenn H. Williams and asked about the **status**, of the **Order**, during the conversation, Attorney Williams stated, he refuses to write up the **Order**. Plaintiff left Attorney Williams' office.

27. Concerned about what to do next, Plaintiff contacted the Judge's office, on September 17, 2009 to ask for assistance with the **matter** and the court administrator suggested that, if the Defendant's Attorney is not responding, then prepare and submit an **Order** for the Judge's review. An **Order** was prepared and submitted, by the Plaintiff, to the Chancery Judge's office via facsimile and U. S. mail, for his review, on September 17, 2009, and the Defendant's Attorney was copied with the same.

28. Plaintiff called the Chancery Judge's office, due to no response, about the status of the Order, for several days, and left messages. It soon became, necessary for Plaintiff to call the Mississippi Supreme Court clerk's office and request assistance. On September

21, 2009, Plaintiff called and spoke to, Ms. Kathy Gillis, with this dilemma, because the Chancery Court Judge apparently was not responding, to the making and signing of his **Order.**

29. After the Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk, Ms. Kathy Gillis made a inquiry into the status of this case, the Chancery Judge finally responded. The Chancery Judge, requested of the Defendant's Attorney, again, to write up the Order. The Order, Plaintiff, previously submitted, was not considered.

30. There was a discrepancy in the **Order** written by the Attorney Williams. The Plaintiff had to file a Motion to Expand, Correct ..., the Record, to clarify the **Order**. Additional exhibits and information pertinent to the Record to convey a fair and accurate account of what transpired, all was not included in the additional requested information for the **Record**.

31.It was, also, discovered a few days later that the incomplete, Record in this case was sent to the Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk's office around the time, a hearing, had just been held, to Expand Correct and Modify the Record and the Order, was still pending.
32. A letter dated September 11, 2009, was received, Notice of Briefing Schedule and the date due. In the process of dealing with the Record, the time for filing the Appellant Brief drew near, and yet the Record was not complete.

33. The Appellant after inquiring with the Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk's Office, Plaintiff filed a Motion for Extension of Time on October 14, 2009 to prepare and file Brief as with *M.R.A.P. Rule 31(e)* Plaintiff prayed for briefing schedule to be set aside or suspended until the Record in the case was complete. 34. The Motion for Extension of Time was granted with a suspension of the briefing schedule, until the Supplemental Record was received by the Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk's Office. A Motion to Expand, Correct and include to the Supplemental Record was filed on Dec. 01, 2009. This Motion was filed to clarify and include all pertinent documents and information filed and received after July 09, 2009, Order to be sure the Record would be complete. This motion is included in the Record.

35. Previously, in the month of, November on 19th another Motion was filed, to try and gain clarity of the Defendant, G. Rives Neblett and his Trustee and Attorney Glenn H. Williams', relationship with the Chancery Judge, who has been, presiding over this case. In doing so, pursuant to Mississippi Chancery Court Rules 1.11, there was A Motion for Disclosure For Any Possible Basis for Judicial Recusal; filed on November 19, 2009. The Motion For Disclosure..., first notice of a Hearing, was set for December 10, 2009, but, the Defendant's Attorney Williams called the Plaintiff on December 09, 2009, and requested a continuance, due to a previous engagement. Plaintiff Osborne acknowledged, Attorney Williams' request, via phone and Plaintiff Osborne, also mailed a letter, dated December 14, 2009 to Attorney Williams. The Plaintiff rescheduled the Motion. 36. The Motion came on for hearing, on Thursday, January 28th 2010; the Chancery Judge adamantly rejected the Motion, which seems to be apparent, for obvious reasons. The Chancery Judge did not respond to the Plaintiff's requests, in reference to the Motion filed. Moreover, the Defendant's Attorney Williams, commenced, discussing another Motion, that was previously filed in the Record.

37. Plaintiff stated, he was not here to discuss the Motion To Expand, Correct And Include To The Supplemental Record, at this time. But, the Chancery Judge refused to respond to the Motion for Disclosure.., The Chancery Judge stated, Plaintiff had no grounds to ask him these questions and issues, in regards to this recusal, and chose not to respond.

38.As unorthodox, as it may be, it would, be highly appreciated of this Honorable Court and respectfully requested, if this, Honorable Court would convene in this matter. This is a greatly needed request, and if Plaintiff is required to petition this request, please **advise**. 39. Subsequently, an Order was written and submitted by the Plaintiff, in regards to the Judge's rulings, due to the fact that the Chancery Judge did not appoint any one to draw up **this Order**, in reference to the hearing held on, **January 28, 2010**, the Order, was signed and entered in the Record on **February 08, 2010**.

40. The Motion To Expand, Correct, And Include To The Supplement Record was also, ruled on, along with the aforementioned Motion For Disclosure, in regards to possible recusal and the Chancery Judge's ruling was also, included in the **Order**, which was signed on **February 08, 2010**.

41. The Chancery Clerk's Office prepared and submitted the supplemental **Record** to the Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk's Office. The Supplemental Record was sent, **without**, first affording the Plaintiff, the opportunity for **reviewing** its contents.

Further Plaintiff Perry Osborne, reserves the right to supplement or amend this Statement of the Case, to demonstrate additional grounds and to convey a fair, accurate and complete account of the Statement of the Case, and the issues.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED THIS THE 19TH DAY OF MAY 2010.

PERRY OSBORNE APPELLANT PRO SE. 'P O BOX 21⁄1 MERIGOLD MS 38759-0211

PHONE (662) 398-7371 Email:ozzieauto@BellSouth.net

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I Perry Osborne Pro Se' Appellant, do hereby certify that I have on this day mailed by first class

U. S. mail, postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of the above and forgoing STATEMENT

OF THE CASE, to the following addresses:

Ms. Kathy Gillis Mississippi Supreme Court Clerk P O Box 249 Jackson MS 39205-0249

Attorney Glenn H. Williams Attorney and Trustee for G. Rives Neblett 201 North Pearman Avenue Cleveland MS 38732

CERTIFIED THIS THE 19TH DAY OF MAY 2010. PERRY OSBORNE PRO SE' APPELLANT P O BOX 211MERIGOLD MS 38759-0211

PHONE (662) 398-7371 Email:ozzieauto@BellSouth.net

PERRY OSBORNE

APPELLANT

VS

CAUSE NO. 2009-CP-01312

G. RIVES NEBLETT REAL ESTATE INVESTOR/ DEVELOPER

APPELLEES

GLENN H.WILLIAMS-ATTORNEY AND TRUSTEE FOR G. RIVES NEBLETT

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

NOW COMES, Perry Osborne, Plaintiff, Pro Se', in the above styled, and numbered Cause will present for review the issues in reference to the FACTS in this case. The issues and facts introduced, in this case for the Honorable Court's consideration, are as follows:

1. **THIS MATTER,** came on before the court on February 05, 2009, in the 7th Chancery Court District, in the Second Judicial District, of Bolivar County. On December 04, 2008 the Plaintiff herein, filed a Complaint For Injunctive Relief with regards to a foreclosure, of a Deed Of Trust, executed by, the Plaintiff, in favor of, the Defendant. This Deed of Trust and the Promissory Note was prepared and filed by Attorney Glenn H. Williams, Trustee and Attorney for G. Rives Neblett, on August 22, 2000, in Book N-24, Page 291 in the records of the Deed of Trust in the office of the Chancery Clerk of Bolivar County, at Cleveland Mississippi.

2. On Friday, May 29, 2009, at 10:00 a.m., at the Coahoma County Courthouse in Clarksdale, Mississippi, **THIS CAUSE**, came on for hearing, pursuant to notice, of the

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