IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MISSISSIPPI

CASE NO. 2009-CP-01312

PERRY OSBORNE

APPELLANT

VS.

G. RIVES NEBLETT

APPELLEES

GLENN H. WILLIAMS, ATTORNEY AND TRUSTEE FOR G. RIVES NEBLETT

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The undersigned counsel of record for Appellees certifies that the following listed persons have an interest in the outcome of this case. These representation are made in order that the Justices of the Supreme Court and/or the Judges of the Court of Appeals may evaluate possible disqualification or recusal.

- The Honorable William G. Willard, Jr., Chancery Court Judge, District Seven,
 Trial Judge;
 - 2. Perry Osborne, Appellant;

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

IV. Summary of the Argument

While Osborne sets forth numerous complaints, accusations and claims of bias in support of his appeal from the Chancellor's Order denying his Motion For Reconsideration, there is scant if any factual record to support his claims of error. Osborne

waived all claims regarding any alleged defect in the foreclosure proceedings by his failure to raise any such issue in his Complaint and/or failing to bring any such issue to the attention of the Trial Court at trial or any time before entry of the original Order on February 12, 2009. This Order confirmed title to subject property in Neblett, and the Trial Court properly found that Osborne had waived all claims with regard to any defect in the foreclosure proceedings. There is nothing in the record to support that the Chancellor abused his discretion, and this Court should affirm the Chancellor's Order denying the Motion For Reconsideration entered on July 9, 2009.

V. Argument

PROPOSITION 1: OSBORNE HAS FAILED TO PROVIDE AN ADEQUATE RECORD TO CONSIDER HIS ISSUES ON APPEAL.

It is unnecessary, if not impossible, for Neblett to respond to each of Osborne's rambling and scatter-shot allegations, complaints and accusations as set forth in his brief, and Neblett should not be required to respond to such factual assertions, which are not supported by the record. "It is the Appellant's duty to supply a reviewing court with an adequate record for the issues under consideration. Oakwood Homes Corp. v. Randall, 824 So. 2d 1292, 1293 (Miss. 2002). Facts asserted to exist must and ought to be definitely proved and placed before us by a record, certified by law; otherwise we cannot know them. Id. at 124." Thompson v. Department of Human Services, 850 So. 2d 739,741 (Miss. 2003). There is no evidence in the record, or even suggestion by Osborne in his brief, that he or his attorney requested a stenographic record of either the original hearing held on February 5, 2009 or the hearing on the Motion For Reconsideration held on May 29, 2009.

Without addressing each and every factual allegation, complaint and accusation set forth by Osborne in his brief, Neblett would show that there is no evidence in the record to support the vast majority of the factual allegations and complaints which Osborne asserts as the basis for his appeal; especially with regard to the manner in which the hearings were conducted. All such allegations, which are not supported by the record, are disputed by Neblett.

Because neither Osborne nor his counsel requested a stenographic record of either the initial hearing on February 5, 2009 or the hearing on the Motion for Reconsideration on May 29, 2009, Osborne does not assert any error in this regard. However, even in the absence of a stenographic record, there was a means to correct any deficiency in the record:

If no stenographic report of the evidence or proceedings is available, the Appellant may prepare a statement of the evidence or proceedings from the best available means, including recollection. The statement should convey a fair, accurate and complete account of what transpired with respect to those issues that are the basis of the appeal..... M.R.A.P.10(c)

"The summary is to be filed with the Court Clerk, and the opposing party then has an opportunity to file timely objections. We must have some statement which would serve a

as a basis for an appellant's claims. Absent a record basis to determine otherwise, we presume the Chancellor's Order is based on adequate evidence." <u>Thompson</u> at 741. In the absence of evidence in the record to support Osborne's complaints of irregularities and error on the part of the Trial Judge, all such claims fail as a matter of law. Osborne could have taken advantage of the procedures provided by M.R.A.P. 10(c), but he failed to do so.

The fact that Osborne is preceding pro se does not relieve him of his duty to provide

the court with an adequate record on which to consider his appeal. "This court has held that pro.se parties are held to the same rules of procedure as represented parties. Dethlefs v.
Beau Maison Dev. Corp., 511 So. 2d 112, 118 (Miss. 1987). "While we acknowledge on the one hand that a pro.se litigant should be afforded some latitude, on the other hand, we have consistently held that pro.se parties are held to the same rules of procedure as represented parties." Black v. City of Tupelo, 853 So. 2d 1221, 1226 (Miss.1987). "Pro.se litigants are not entitled to a general dispensation from the rules of procedure." Perry v. Andy, et al, 858 So. 2d 143,149 (Miss.2003). It was Osborne's duty to provide this Court with an adequate record setting forth facts to support his rambling assertions in support his claimed errors on the part of the Chancellor. In the absence of a record of the facts to support his claims, there is no basis to find error.

PROPOSITION TWO: OSBORNE HAS WAIVED ALL CLAIMS BASED ON ANY ALLEGED DEFECT IN THE FORECLOSURE.

Osborne raised in his Motion to Reconsider (then represented by Counsel) an alleged defect in the foreclosure with regard to the publication of notice. However, no such defect was alleged or even remotely suggested in his Complaint filed in the Chancery Court on December 4, 2008, and Osborne has never suggested that he in any way raised the issue at the hearing before the Trial Court on February 5, 2009. In the Order following that hearing, the Chancellor expressly found that "the Plaintiff has presented no facts or legal argument which would in any way support setting aside the Trustee's Sale or Trustee's Deed executed and filed following the sale, and the Trustee's Sale should be and is hereby confirmed and ratified in all respects." (Appellee's Tr. Ex. 14). The Chancery Court further found in its

Order that title to the subject property "is now vested in the Defendant/Counter-Claimant, G. Rives Neblett".

The issue was raised for the first time in Osborne's Motion for Reconsideration, and the Court ruled in its Order denying Osborne's Motion for Reconsideration that "while the Plaintiff suggests that there was a defect in the foreclosure proceedings with regard to the manner of publication, no such defect in the foreclosure proceedings was alleged in the Complaint, and this issue was not raised at the hearing on Plaintiff's Complaint held on February 5, 2009. Therefore, said issue is not properly before the Court and/or all claims in this regard have been waived by the Plaintiff."

The Chancellor's ruling was correct because "the lower Court is limited to those issues raised in the pleadings and to the proof in the record." Setser v. Piazza, 644 So 2d 1211, 1217 (Miss. 1994). Although not raised in the pleadings issues may (only) be tried by implied consent pursuant to M.R.C.P. 15(b)". Id. Because the issue was not alleged in the Complaint and not raised or even suggested by Osborne at the hearing on February 5, the Chancellor correctly found that the issue had been waived, and the Order of the Court acted as a confirmation of title in Neblett.

Osborne could have filed a Notice of Appeal to this Court from the Judgment entered on February 12, 2009, and he obviously has the capability to do so. If he had done so, however, there would be no basis for this Court to consider this issue on appeal. "As this Court has stated, time and time again, an issue not raised before the lower Court is deemed waived and is procedurally barred." Gail v. Thomas, et al, 759 So 2d 1150, 1159 (Miss. 1999). The Chancellor found, just as this Court would have found if Osborne had taken

appeal to this Court from the Trial Court's Order of February 12, 2009, that this issue has been waived.

PROPOSITION THREE: THE CHANCERY COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS

DISCRETION IN DENYING THE PLAINTIFF'S

MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION, FOR STAY OF

ORDER AND FURTHER RELIEF.

Although the original hearing before the Chancery Court was held on February 5, 2009, the Order on this hearing was not entered until February 12, and Osborne had 30 days from this date or approximately 37 days from the day of the original hearing to file a Notice of Appeal; in which case, he could have sought review of all issues joined in the Complaint and supported by record. However, Osborne elected to file a motion pursuant to *M.R.C.P.* 62(b) and requested the following relief:

- (1) To reconsider its February 12, 2009 Order for the reasons stated above, to set said Order aside and allow Plaintiff to proceed on the merits of his complaint and such others amended and additional pleadings as are necessary to be filed;
- (2) To stay execution in the said Order under M.R.C.P. 62(b) until final consideration of this motion;
- (3) Upon granting Plaintiff's Motion For Reconsideration, to allow Counsel for Plaintiff to amend Plaintiff's Complaint to more clearly and artfully present the Plaintiff's claims herein, and to promptly reply to the Defendant's counterclaim. (Appellee's Tr. Ex. 14).

By filing a Motion for Reconsideration pursuant to M.R.C.P. 62(b), Osborne is

standard. Porter v. Porter, 23 So 3d 438, 450 (Miss. 2009). *M.R.C.P. 60(b)* provides that a party may seek relief from a Judgment for the following reasons;" 1) Fraud, misrepresentation....; 2) Accidents or mistakes; 3) Newly discovered evidence....; 4) The judgment is void; 5) The judgment has been satisfied...; and 6) Any other reason justifying relief from the judgment." Since 60(b) (1) (2)(3)(4) and (5) clearly have no application to Osborne's alleged grounds to seek relief from the judgment as set forth in his Motion For Reconsideration, he is obviously seeking relief under rule 60(b)(6), and "relief under 60(b)(6) is reserved for extraordinary and compelling circumstances, such as fraud upon the Court." Trim v. Trim, 33 So. 3d 471, 75 (Miss. 2010). Furthermore, "Rule 60(b) should not be used by litigants as an escape hatch in cases where the movant has had procedural opportunities afforded under other rules yet has failed to pursue said procedural remedies."

Welch v. Bank One, 6 So.3d 435, 438 (Miss. 2009) citing City of Jackson v. Jackson Oakes

L.T.D. Partnership, 792 So. 2d 983, 986 (Miss. 2001).

In the case at bar, Osborne has failed to present any "extraordinary and compelling circumstances" which would support his claim that the Chancellor abused his discretion in failing to grant the Motion for Reconsideration. There is no basis in the record for this Court to find that the Chancellor did not fairly consider Osborne's Motion for Continuance and his ability to proceed, especially considering that Osborne's Motion for Continuance was made on the day of the hearing, without any advance notice to the Court or opposing Counsel. Osborne was also technically in default for having not responded to Neblett's counter-claim within 30 days. *M.R.C.P.* 12(a). Nevertheless, Neblett did not move

for an entry of default, and there is nothing in the record to suggest that the Court did not carefully consider all arguments, testimony and evidence submitted by Osborne at the hearing. "It is the Appellant's duty to supply a reviewing Court an adequate record for the issues under consideration." Qakwood Homes Corporation v. Randall, 824 So.2d 1292, 1293 Miss (2002). Facts asserted to exist must and ought to be definitely proved and placed before us by a record, certified by law; otherwise, we cannot know them. Thompson v. Miss Dept of Human Services, 856 So.2d 739, 741 (Miss.2003). "Absent a record basis to determine otherwise, we presume the Chancellor's Order.... was based on adequate evidence." Id Accordingly, Osborne's rambling allegations, accusations and suggestions of bias and fault on the part of the Trial Court, which are without any factual support in the record, provide this Court with no basis whatsoever to find that the Chancellor has abused his discretion in denying Osborne's Motion for Reconsideration.

Likewise there is no basis for this court to find any error in the Chancellor's denial of Osborne's ore tenus motion for continuance, and Osborne has failed to suggest what additional evidence he would have presented if a continuance had been granted. He showed no intention to hire an attorney prior to the hearing, and he failed to retain an attorney until more than thirty days after the entry of the Order on February 12, 2009. There is nothing in the record to suggest that the Chancellor did not fairly consider Osborne's Motion For Continuance and his ability to proceed. Furthermore, "the grant or denial of a continuance rests within the sound discretion of the trial court, and appellate court will not reverse unless convinced the trial court abused its discretion and unless it is satisfied that injustice has resulted therefrom. Bay Springs Forest Products, Inc. V. Wade, et al, 435 So.2d 690,692

(Miss.1983).

Osborne's claim that he was not allowed to approve the Order pursuant to Uniform Chancery Rule 5.04, which requires the attorney drawing the order to submit the same to "opposing counsel for criticism as to form only" is no basis for error. Osborne's stated objections to the order, such as they are, are clearly to the "substance" not the "form" of the order, and he has not stated exactly why he objects to the "form" of the judgment.

Furthermore, his attorney raised this issue in Osborne's Motion for Reconsideration, and the Chancery Court clearly found no merit with any claim for relief in this regard.

Osborne's statement in his Motion to Reconsider that "this Court is required to liberally construe *M.R.C.P.* 60(b) in deciding whether to grant" his Motion for Reconsideration is completely contrary to the law. "Motions for relief under Rule 60(b) are generally addressed to the sound discretion of the Trial Court, and review is limited to whether that discretion has been abused". Porter v. Porter at 451. Osborne makes this statement, in both his motion and his brief, without citing any supporting legal authority, and "the failure to sight authority in support of an issue precludes this Court from considering the issue on appeal". Kirkley v. Forrest County Gen. Hosp., 991 So.2d 652, 662(Miss.Ct. App. 2008). Without no legal authority cited to support the vast majority of Osborne's issues on appeal, there is no legal basis for this Court to find that the Chancellor committed any error or abused his discretion in denying Osborne's Motion For Reconsideration.

VI. Conclusion

In the absence of any factual record or legal authority cited by Osborne, there is no basis for this Court to find that the Chancellor committed any error in finding that Osborne

presented no legal or factual basis for the Chancery Court to reconsider its Order entered on February 12, 2009. The Chancery Court was also correct in finding that any defect in the foreclosure process had been waived by Osborne's failure to raise such issue in the pleadings and/or bring the issue it to the attention of the Court at the hearing on February 5, 2009, and the Chancellor properly entered the Order which confirmed title in Neblett. There is no legal or factual basis to find the Chancellor abused his discretion denying the Motion for Reconsideration, and this Court should affirm the Order denying the Motion for Reconsideration entered on July 09, 2009.